
1689th meetinJ- Il December 1974 353 
Committee (A/9852); (b) approve the administrative and 
budgetary provisions of the draft Agreement between the 
Uni~ed Nations and WIPO; and (c) take note of chapter VI, 
section A.6, of the report of the Economie and Social 
Council (A/9603). 

ft was sa decided. 

62. The CHAIRMAN said that, in accordance with the 
Committee's decision at its 165lst meeting, the Rapporteur 

woul~ report direct to the General Assembly at its plenary 
meetmg concerning the decisions of the Committee. 

63. With the exception of the consideration of the draft 
paragraph .to be submitted by the Netherlands delegation, 
the Comrruttee had thus concluded consideration of agenda 
item 75. 

The meeting rose at 10.40 p. m. 

1689th meeting 
Wcdnesday, 11 December 1974,at 3 p.m. 

Chainnan: Mr. Costa P. CARANICAS (Greece). 

AGENDA ITEM 7l 

Financial reports and accounts for the year 1973 and 
reports of the Board of Aucfitors (conc/uded): • 

(b) United Nations Development Programme (conchlded)• 

United Nations Fund for Population ActMties 
(A/9607/Add. 1, vol. Il; A/9763/Add.J) 

1. Mr. RHODES (Chainnan of the Advisory Committee on 
Administrative and Budgetary Questions), referring to the 
fmancial report and accounts of the United Nations Fund 
for Population Activities (A/9607 /Add.l, vol. Il), said that 
the Advisory Committee's report (A/9763/Add.l) was 
self-explanatory. Although there had been sorne problems, 
as could be seen from paragraph 4, the Advisory Committee 
had realized that 1973 was a transition al · year and had 
therefore not wished to discuss the disagreement which had 
emerged between the Board of Auditors and the Fund 
concerning the "rolling plan" and the annual funding in the 
operations of the Fund, but hoped that the parties would 
fmd a solution within the framework of the new fmancial 
regulations which had come into force in January 1974. 

2. He drew attention to paragraph 7 of the report of the 
Advisory Committee. 

3. The CHAIRMAN proposed that the Committee should 
recommend the adoption by the General Assembly of the 
draft resolution which he read out.' 

ft was so decided. 

AGENDA ITEM 82 

United Nations salary system (continued): 
(a) Report of the Secretary-General (continued) (A/9738 

and Add.1 and Add.1/Corr.l, A/9891); 
(b) Report of the International Civil Service Advisory 

Board (continutd) (A/9630, A/9709, A/9919, A/C.S/ 
1652) 

• Resumcd from the 1652nd meeting. 

1 Tel(t !ubscquently adopted by the General Assembly (resolution 
3303 (XXIX)). 

A/C.5/SR.l689 

4. Mr. PAI.AMARCHUK (Union of Soviet Socialist Re· 
publics) suggested that the Committee should take a 
decision on the composition of the International Civil 
Service Commission so that the Secretary-General could 
submit to the Advisory Comrnittee on Administrative and 
Budgetary Questions and the Fifth Committee the names of 
candidates for appointrnent to the Commission. 

5. Mr. DAVIDSON (Under-Secretary.Ceneral for Adminis· 
tration and Manag:ment) said that, by its resolution 
3042 (XXVII), the General Assembly had decided that the 
Commission should have 13 members; what remained to be 
decided was the number of full-time members. If the fifth 
Committee were now to decide to approve the Advisory 
Committee's recommendation (A/9891, para. 19) that 
there should be 2 full-time members, the Administration 
would have no difficulty in completing its consultations 
with the Advisory Committee. 

6. Mr. MSELLE (United Republic of Tanzania) agreed 
that the Fifth Committee could proceed on the understand· 
ing that it approved the Advisory Committee's recommen· 
dation and that the Under-Secretary.Ceneral for Adminis· 
tration and Management should hold consultations with the 
Advisory Committee conceming the list of candidates. If 
the negotiations did not begin until the Fifth Committee 
had taken a decision on the establishment of the Commis· 
sion, there would be no time for it to take a decision on the 
list of candida tes. 

7. Mr. PALAMARCHUK (Union of Soviet Socialist Re­
publics) agreed that the Committee was now inclined to 
support the Advisory Committee's recommendation and 
that the Under·Secretary-General should go ahead with the 
negotiations. 

Mr. Garrido (Philippines), Vice-Chairman, took the 01air. 

8. Mr. NAGGAGA (Uganda) said that rus Govemment had 
not so far made any formai reservations or suggestions with 
regard to the draft statu te of the International Civil Service 
Commission. It had, however, pointed out the need for a 
co-<>rdinated approach to personnel problems through such 
a commission. The Commission's mandate should therefore 



354 General Assembly - Twenty-ninth Session - Fifth Committee 

be broad enough to enable it to perfonn its functions, 
taking into account the human aspects involved. 

9. In view of the fact that staff members had experienced 
an erosion of the purchasing power of their salaries since 
1971 owing to inflation and other upheavals, his delegation 
accepted the recommendation of ICSAB (A/9630, para. 36) 
for a net salary increase of 6 per cent effective 1 January 
1975 for the Professional and higher categories. ln the light 
of the Secretary-General's re marks in document A/9709, 
paragraph 13, that recommendation was conservative. His 
delegation also agreed with the Advisory Comnùttee that 
piecemeal adjustments rrùght cause serious distortions~in 
the salary sc ales of the staff in the Professional and higher 
categories. While it was true that the United Nations civil 
service was better treated than most national civil services, 
that was a necessary element if it was to attract the best 
candidates throughout the world. Finally, his delegation 
accepted the conclusions in paragraph 29 of the Advisory 
Committee's report (A/9919). 

10. Mr. AKASHI (Japan) said his delegation noted with 
satisfaction that the revised version of the draft statute of 
the International Civil Service Commission now met the 
difficulties that had been mentioned in the Fifth Commit­
tee at the preceding session and in the communications 
from Governments, and that his own delegation's corn· 
ments on the indivisibility of the powers of the Commis· 
sion, the authority of the General Assembly and the need 
to specify staff representation had been ta ken into account. 
It endorsed the comments and suggestions made by the 
Advisory Committee and agreed that the Commission 
should start its work with the existing staff to be 
transferred from the organizations in the common system. 
In that connexion, it noted with concem that two of the 
largest agencies in the system appeared to be unwilling to 
surrender any posts to the Commission, despite the fact 
that it would take over sorne of the functions perfonned by 
their secretariats. His delegation hoped that the Commis­
sion would become operational as soon as possible. 

11 . With regard to the salary system, he said that the 
Committee could not avoid dealing with an interim 
adjustment because, even if the International Civil Service 
Commission was set up immediately, it was unlikely to be 
in a position to rnake any recommendations on the subject 
before the autwnn of 1976. His delegation accepted the 
ICSAB calculation that the cumulative shortfall between 
the increase in the cost of living and the degree to which 
the post adjustrnent system compensated for that increase 
amounted to 3.35 per cent. With regard to the movement 
of the national civil service salaries in seven countrics where 
organizations in the common system were located, his 
delegation had estimated the changes between 1971 and 
1974- a shorter period than ICSAB had taken-and had 
found that the unweighted average of the index amounted 
to 2.8 per cent. lf those two factors were taken into 
account, the increase of about 6 per cent might be justified. 
His delegation was aware that United Nations remuneration 
was higher than the comparable remuneration in the United 
States civil service, the difference being quite pronounced 
in New York but much Jess so in Washington. 1t noted that 
there was no generally accepted view as to the degree to 
which the expatriation factor had to be reflected in order 
to adjust the United Nations salary upwards. 

12. Although his delegation would have preferred the 
postponement of a salary adjustment to a later date, it 
could find no convincing reason to postpone the interim 
adjustment of the base salary until an indefmite future 
date. 1t would not, thereforc, object to the 6 per cent 
increase, but without the consolidation of the two classes 
of post adjustment. lt would also concur with the recom. 
mendations on children 's allowancc and assignment allow­
ance, but agreed that no action should be takcn with regard 
to the other allowanccs . Finally, his delegation associated 
itself with the hope that a comprehensive review of the 
entire salary system would be undertaken by the new 
Comnùssion. 

13. Mr. PALAMARCHUK (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) noted that nearly three years had passed since 
the General Assembly had decided to establish the Interna· 
tional Civil Service Commission, but the question remained 
unresolved. His delegation thought that the Fifth Commit· 
tee had everything it needed to take a decision on the 
establishment of the Commission . The 13 members should 
be selected on the basis of equitable gcographical represen­
tation, and the Commission must be established as an organ 
of the General Assembly. As part of its work it should 
prepare recommendations to the General Assembly on the 
salaries of staff in the Professional and higher categories and 
General Service staff, and on such matters as allowances 
and pensions. 

14. His delegation could not agree that the Commission 
should be divided into full-time and part-time members; ali 
the members must have equal status, participate equally in 
the adoption of decisions and bear full responsibility for 
the Commission's work. Nor could it agree that the 
Commission should have 2 full-time officers, a Chairman 
and a Vice-Chairman but it could accept the idea of a 
full-time Chainnan. 1~ would have difficulty in supporting 
the proposai of the Sccretary·Gcneral and the recommenda· 
tion of the Advisory Committee thal the Chainnan and 
Vice-Chainnan should be appointed by the General Assem· 
bly. It would be preferable for the Chairman to be chosen 
by the members of the Commission for one year and to be 
eligible for re-election. 

1 S. The Commission should immediately begin considera· 
tion of the report of the Special Committee for the ReVJ~W 
of the United Nations $alary Systcml and should base 115 

work on the Special Committce'~ rccommendation that th~ 
salaries of United Nations staff members should not excee 
those of United States civil servants by more than 15 ~~ 
cent. lt would also be appropriate to approve the s~~l e 
Comrnittee's recommcndation that the Expert Comnut e f 
on Post Adjustments should become a subsicliary organ ° 
the Commission. 

16. The Commission's secretariat should be establish~~ 
conformity with the principle of eqUitable geogr~P. 's 
distribution of posts. With regard to the ~omm,sSlo;nt 
budget for 1975 , his delegation was basically m agr~e~ory 
with the comments and recommendations of the A

19
V:91). 

Committee in paragraphs 36 to 50 of its report (A 

2 """enty·reventlr 
OfficitJI Records of the General Auembry. 1 .. 

Session, Supplement No. 28 and corrigendum. 

--



16!19th meeting- Il D~ccmbn 1974 355 

17. His delegation could not support the recommcnda­
tions of ICSAB conceming a sabry increasc and incrcascs in 
the children's and assignment allowanccs. The rccommcnda· 
tion for a o per cent salary i.ncrease , in particular, was 
premature and unjustificd, sin ce the effects of inf1a ti on and 
the cost of living were always taken care of by the post 
adjustment system, as both ICSAB and the Ad visory 
Committee had noted in their reports. ICSAB had consid· 
ered material submitted by the secretariats of the organiza­
tions in the United Nations system- in othcr words, by the 
staff themselves, who naturatly had an intercst in improving 
their own salaries. The organizations ma intained that their 
remuneration was inadequate, and ICSAB had thereforc 
recommended the restoration of the ratio of United 
Nations salaries to those of the United States civil service to 
the one ex.isting on 1 July 1lJ71. ICSAB itself recognized, in 
paragraph 27 of its report (A/9630), thal the method uscd 
by the organizations in measuring the \oss of income 
reached a higher figure than ICSAB would consider justified 
and, in paragraph 28, th at the real income indices of certain 
duty stations were slightly overstated. 1t would be appropri· 
ate to recall General Assembly resolution 2742 (XXV) in 
which the Assembly had decided that no further adjust· 
ment of the base salary scales for the Professional and 
higher categories should be made until the revicw of the 
salary system had been completcd . Responsibility for the 
review had passed from the Special Committee for the 
Review of the United Nations Salary System to the 
International Civil Service Commission . The General Assern· 
bly had never revoked that resolution and consequently the 
question of adjustments to base salaries rcmaincd the 
prerogative of the Commission . 

18. The Advisory Committee statcd in paragraph 10 of its 
report {A/9919) that a comparison bctween United Nations 
salary rates and those for corresponding grades in the 
United States federal civil service showed that the net pay 
of United Nations staff in the Profcssional and rugher 
categories serving in New York was much highcr than that 
of their counterparts in the United States federal civil 
service. Furthennorc, the proposed 6 per cent sa!ary in· 
crease would entai! enormous additional expenditures, 
totalling sorne $26 million for the United Nations system as a 
who le. In his delegation's view, the FiftJ1 Committee could 
not take such far-reaching decisions at a time when the 
United Nations was already expcriencing acute financial 
difficulties . His delegation could not understand why the 
Advisory Committee, having rccognized that the proposa15 
put forward by ICSAB were unjustitied, had ncvcrtheless 
agreed with them. His delegation could not support the 
Ad vis ory Committee 's conclusions and rccommcndations or 
acccpt the financial implications of their adoption. 

19. Mr. SCHMIDT (Federal Republic of Germany) said 
that his Government attached considerable importance to 
finding a satisfactory and equitable salary system for the 
remuneration of UniteJ Nations staff. The overriding 
objective was to avoid delaying action for anothet year, and 
to take whatever decision was necessary to improve the 
salary system, even tJ10ugh thcre might be sorne doubts 
about the details of the proposals before the Committce. 
His Govemment therefore recommended, as a ftrst step, 
acceptance of the draft statute of the International Civil 
Service Commission submitted by the Secretary-Generll in 
document A/9738, and modificd by the Advisory Commit· 

. ·.· 1 

- ---------------- --------
tee in document A/'1891 . The improved version scemcd to 
mcet the criticisms voiced against the original draft, 
especially with re gard to the structure of the Commission 
and the division of responsibilities. 1 he appointment of 
only a Chairman and a Viœ-Chairman as full-time officers , 
and the vesting of ali powers in the Commission as a whole , 
secmed to do away with the inequalities which might have 
existed within the Commission under the tenns of the 
previous draft . If the Commission was not set up at the 
current session, the overhauling of the salary system might 
have to be postponed , and !t might be necessary to resort to 
makeshift arrangements . The unsatisfactory nature of such 
a solution was probably best seen when dealing with the 
proposais of ICSAB for an increase in the salary rates and in 
certain allowances. The current salary system would 
become even more out of li ne with economie and monetary 
deve1opments in fllember States, and interim arrangements 
would only increase the inherent difficu.lties of the system. 
Action should therefore be taken on the proposais, bearing 
in mind the Committee's responsibility to the employer, 
not only for the United Nations but for ali other 
organizations adhering to tl1e so-called common system. 

20. \Vith reference to the questions whether and by how 
much the base salary should be increJsed, his delegation 
considered that no valid formula existed under which the 
Noblcmaire principle could be applied as an interim 
solution. The suggestion by the Special Committee for the 
Review of the United Nations Salary System, in 1972, that 
United Nations salaries should not exceed comparable 
United States civil service salaries by more than 1 S percent 
had never been adopted by the General Assembly, and the 
situation as a who\e had changed considerably. His delega­
tion therefore felt that the only valid interim solution 
should be based on whether and to what extent the 
take-home pay of United Nations staff bad been eroded by 
economie developments since the \ast salary increase in 
1971 . Oepending on how the calculations were made, 
different estimates of the decline in the purchasing power 
of United Nations Professional salaries wou.ld be obtained. 
A loss of at !east 3 pcr cent seemed to be a widely acceptcd 
fi.gure . Other calculations, depending on whether they 
referred to staff members with or without dependents, 
could Iead to much higher percentages. Under thosc 
circumstances, the increases proposed by ICSAB and 
endorsed by the Advisory Committee did not seem unrea­
sonable. The final fi gure cha sen wou id be, to a certain 
extent, a political one and, in arder to facilitate the 
decision, his delegation could concur with the recommenda­
tions of ICSAB and the Advisory Committce, including the 
proposed increases i.n the dependency and assignment 
allowances. 

Mr. Caranicas (Greccc} rcs11mc:d the Orair. 

21. Mr. BOUA YAD-AGIIA (Algeria) sa id thal the 6 pcr 
cent increase as from 1 J a nu~ry 1975 re.::ommendcd by 
ICSAB as an interim measure WJS not excessive; indecd , it 
was Jess than the amount recommcnded by eithcr the 
Secretary-General or the Federation of International Civil 
Servants' Associations (FICSA), and his delegation suppNt· 
edit. 

22. With regard to the International Civil Ser.-ice Commis­
sion, his delegation would prefer a Commission of S full -

. ..:'~- .:. .... /~--= } _ · -.-.·- · .' :. ~ -.t_ .. :. -·5'\.·. < ·· _, ' .+. -' -- *': ·: .. , ;:e~ '"~* 



356 General Assembly - Twenty·ninth Session - Fifth Committce 
-------------- -------

time members appointed by the General Assembly ; that 
would ensure that ali geograpltical regions were represented. 
1t agreed with ICSAB that sorne tension might arise if the re 
were two categorie< of members . However, it was open to 
any suggestion, and the proposai that there should be a 
full -time chairman and a full-time vice-chairman was not a 
bad one . His delegation entirely agreed with the Advisory 
Committee on the need to make it quite clear that the 
full -time members were independent of any secretariat and 
that their remuneration should be determined by the 
General Assembly without reference to the common 
system, so that they would not be personally affected by 
the recommendations they made. His delegation would like 
the list of candidates for appointment by the General 
Assembly to be published; otherwise, it might be forced to 
circulate the one it had in its own possession, which it 
believed was accurate. Finally, he pointed out that hls 
delegation would have difflculty in agreeing to a Chainnan 
or a Vice.Chainnan of Swiss nationality . 

23. Mr. MATSEJKO (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic) 
said that his delegation could not accept the proposais for a 
6 per cent salary increase and increases in the children's 
allowance and assignment allowance, whlch would add 
S 7,440,000 to the total annual assessmen ts of Member 
States. The documents before the Committee showed that 
there was a complete Jack of agreement between ICSAB 
and the Advisory Committee concerning the proposed 
innovations . The arguments adduced in support of the 
proposais were unconvincing, indeed worthless. ln para· 
grdph 13 of its report (A/9919) the Advisory Committee 
expressed doubts about supporting the proposed salary 
increase, but unfortunately it had decided not to oppose 
ICSAB's recommendation. His delegation was alanned by 
the "flexible" att itude of the Advisory Committee, for, if 
that Committee had doubts, it was reasonable to conclude 
that the proposai had not been justified. 

24. Although the Special Committee for the Review of the 
United Nations Salary System had concluded that United 
Nations salaries should not exceed those of United States 
civil servants by more than 15 per cent, the comparative 
figures given in the annex to the Advisory Committee's 
report showcd that the current net remuneration of United 
Nations staff was considerably hlgher than that of their 
counterparts in the United States civil service- a fact whlch 
the Advisory Committee accepted . ln the light of those 
figures, it would be better for the Fifth Committee to think 
of bringing United Nations salaries into line with the 
Special Committee's recommendations. Despite the provi­
sion made in General Assembly resolution 3042 (XXVII) 
for a 'comprehensive review of the United Nations salary 
system by the International Civil Service Commission, the 
Committee was again considering, in the language of the 
ICSAB report, "an interim step . .. designed to restore a 
measure of equilibrium to a situation in flux" (A/9630, 
para. 3 7). His delegation favoured a solution of the problem 
that would be acceptable to ali the parties and would take 
account of past decisions of the General Assembly. 

25. The Secretary-General had produced no evidence in 
support of the recommendations for increases in the 
children's allowance and the assignment allowance; he had 
merely supported ICSAB's view. The reasons advanced in 
paragraphs 46 to 61 of the ICSAB report for changes in the 

present benefits gave rise to doubts. For example, in 
paragraph 57, it was stated that the assignmcnt allowance 
had been introduced to meet the extra costs of furnished 
accommodation, while in paragraphs 59 and 60 an attcmpt 
was made to justify the proposed 75 pcr cent increase as 
"an inducement to field service". With regard to the 
proposai to increase the children's allowance by 50 pee 
cent, ltis delegation thought that the arguments given in 
paragraph 46 were inconsistent. It could not accept such 
"justifications" and would not support the recommenda­
tions. 

26. The United Nations salary system obviously needed 
improvement, but the various proposais that had bcen made 
were only half measures . Effective decisions must be based 
on a comprehensive study of the wh ole problem, which was 
a task for the proposed International Civil Service Commis· 
sion. At the twenty-eighth session, his delegation had stated 
its view that the Commission should be an intergovem­
mental organ required to make recommendations to the 
General Assembly. lt supported article 2 of the draft 
statute and the Advisory Committee's recommendation, in 
paragraph 11 of its report (A/9891 ), that tlte membership 
of the Commission should not exceed 13 persans chosen on 
the basis of broad geograplùcal representation . Ali the 
members of the Commission should bear full responsibility 
for its work and participa te equally in the adoption of draft 
decisions and recommendations. The members of the 
Commission would of course choose a Chairman, whose 
tenn of office should be one year and who would be 
eligible for re-election. His delegation could not accept the 
Secretary-Gencral's proposai, supported by the Advisory 
Committee, that the Chairman and Vice-Chainnan should 
be appointed by the General Asscmbly. lt hoped that the 
Fifth Committce would rccommend the establishment of 
the Commission as from 1 January 1975, so that the latter 
wou1d be able to begin as soon as possible its consideration 
of the important questions awaiting comprehensive and 
objective study. 

27. The SECRETARY-GENERAL recalled that, in his 
statement at the 1639th meeting of the Committee, he had 
mentioned (A/C.5/1614, para. 3) the ICSAB recommenda­
tions, pointed out that they had system-wide implications 
and expressed the hope that the Fifth Committee, when 
considering those recommendations, would not take a 
decision witltin the narrow context of the Organiz.ation's 
immediate budgetary problems. He emphasized, on behalf 
of the Administrator of UNDP and the executive heads of 
ali the agencies, the importance of action being taken at the 
current session. The recommendations, wh.ich the Advisory 
Committee largely supported, were modest, and he doubted 
whether the interim adjustments would be enough until the 
proposed Commission could report on its full-scale review 
of the salary system. That doubt would increase if positive 
action on the recommendations was not approved at the 
current session. ICSAB's mandate had been to examine the 
extent to which international civil service salaries had 
deteriorated in relation to the leve! approved by the 
General Assembly that went into effect in 1971 and the 
relative movements in national civil services during the same 
period, and to make recommendations . Although sorne 
delegations might find sorne matters on which to put 
questions or express reservations with regard to ICSAB's 
calculations, the essential point was that the 11-member 



1689th meeting- Il December 1974 357 

board, composed of experts with long experience in 
reviewing many aspects of the problem, had spent i2 days 
on the matter in 1973 and had gone into it in far greater 
depth than most people were able to do. lt seemed, 
the re fore, that the Fifth Committee would be wise to 
accept the judgement of the experts to whom it had 
entrusted the study, ali of whom were men of sound 
judgement and integrity. He urged that the Board's judge­
ment, as supported by the Advisory Committee, should be 
accepted. 

28. Mr. WHITI.AM (Australia) said that his delegation 
supported the Advisory Committee's proposais on the 
International Civil Service Commission. 

29 . With regard to remuneration of staff in the Profession­
al and higher categories, his delegation supported the 
recommendations. concerning a 6 per cent increase and 
concerning dependency and assignment aiiowances , as it 
believed that only a well-paid Secretariat could attract the 
sk.illed personnel needed by the United Nations. 1t regretted 
that the Advisory Committee had not been more enthusias­
tic about the recommendations. 

30 . Mr. DIPP GOMEZ (Dominican Republic) pointed out 
that, while his delegation believed that the remuneration of 
United Nations staff members should be appropriate to 
their functions and in accordance with the Noblemaire 
principle, it seemed that they were between 127 and 145 
per cent of United States civil service salaries. His delega­
tion was somewhat confused by the data presented in the 
three documents bcfore the Committee (A/9630, A/9709, 
A/9919) in support of the recommendation for a 6 percent 
increase effective 1 January 1975, and it had reservations 
conceming the recommcndation. He drew attention to 
paragraph 13 of the Ad visory Committee's report (A/ 
9919) , which stated that the Advisory Committte accepted 
the view, implicit in the Board's recommcndation, that the 
increases proposed by the Secretary-General and by FICSA 
would not, in the prevailing circumstances, be justified, but 
that it had decided not to oppose the Board's recommenda­
tion . Such reluctant acceptance of the recommendation 
made it clear that "the evidence in support of it had not 
been convincing. Indeed, paragraphs 38 and 39 of the 
ICSAB report (A/9630) showed that sorne members of the 
Board had exprcssed scrious reservations. Moreover, the 
recommendation would mean an additionai burden of 
$16.2 million for the United Nations budget alone as weil 
as a burdcn for Member States, particularly the developing 
countries, which had to pay for the high cost of imported 
inflation. 

31. His delegation had sorne reservations with regard to 
the usefulness and high cost of the proposed staff for the 
International Civil Service Commission and felt, moreover, 
th;o.t there were a number of existing bodies which could 
study administrative and personnel matters. ln any event, 
the Commission , if it was established , should be headed by 
a board of at !east 3 out of the 13 members. 

32. Mr. Sanaullah KHAN (Pakistan) expressed concern at 
the fact that so important an item as the draft statute of 
the International Civil Service Commission was being 
considered at the eleventh hour. His delegation was happy 
to note that the new text for article 18 of the dra ft statu te 
made it quite clear that basic policies with respect to ali 

matters for which the Commission was responsible would 
be the responsib.ility of the Commission as a whole and 
spelt out the latter's responsibilities. Although his delega­
tion had initially favoured having 1 permanent member, it 
would be prepared to accept the proposai for 2 full-time 
members. Accordingly, it endorsed the amendment to 
article 2 of the draft statute proposed by the Advisory 
Committee in paragraph 21 of its report (A/9891) and the 
consequential changes proposed in paragraph 22. It also 
supported the Advisory Committee's proposais on budget 
estimates contained in paragraphs 36 to 50 of its report. 
Thus, his delegation supported the draft statute of the 
International Civil Service Commission. Fin ally, he a gain 
expressed disappointment at the fact that, by giving undue 
attention to trilles, the Committee was now being forced to 
proceed with unseemly haste on important constitutional 
questions. 

33 . Mr. LAIILOU (Mo rocco) sa id th at the reports be fore 
the Committce were not conclusive. The proposed 6 per 
cent salary increase would have been fair if the rate of 
inflation had been the same in aU the United Nations 
headquarters countries and if currency fluctuations had 
been of equal intensity. Any step that was taken would 
therefore be merely temporary, for a more thoroughgoing 
reform was necessary. 

34. His delegation was in favour of the establishment of 
the International Civil Service Commission but felt that, in 
order to be effective , the Commission must always have 
political support and due regard for equitable geographical 
distribution and must not play an administrative role. Sorne 
autonomy was necessary , and the members must be 
sufficiently representative to guarantee the neccssary cohe­
sion between them and the legislative bodies . His delegation 
could not yet determine its position on the size of the 
membership but felt that there should be at !east 2 full-time 
members, although that should not affect the statutory 
equality of ali membcrs of the Commission. 

35 . Mr. STOTTLEMYER (United States of America) said 
that his delegation would limit its remarks to the salary 
question per se, which, for purposcs of presentation, it 
would divide into five basic components : the proposed 
increase in base sa lary ; the proposai, rejected by the 
Advisory Committee , for consolida ting two classes of post 
adjustment into the basic salary scale ; the proposai , also 
rejected by the Advisory Committee, to reduce the waiting 
period for the application of post adjustments from four to 
three months; the recommcnded increase in the children's 
allowance; and the proposai to revise assignmcnt allow­
ances . Since the first of those proposais was by far the most 
significant, the greater part of his statement would be 
devoted toit . 

36. His delegation's examination of the proposed salary 
increase was based on certain major considerations . First, it 
recognized that staff members stationed in most of the 
main United Nations duty stations were currently being 
subjected to serious inflationary and currency fluctuation 
pressures. Although the currcncy float had added an 
element of instability which affect~d the salaries of many 
staff members of the Unitc:d Nations and its sister agencies, 
the existing system of remuneration fortunately did a fairly 
good job of offsetting those influences. Secondly , his 
delegation believed that, to act responsibly, the Fifth 



358 Genenl Asscmbly - Twenty-ninth Ses.'lion - Fifth Committee 

Committee must be ar in mind the fmancial situation of the 
Organi7.ation before it took a decision on alterir.g the 
existing salary system. Any increase in staff salaries must be 
considered and ful.ly justified within the context of the 
continuing serious financial problems facing the United 
Nations. Thirdly, any action ta ken should be placed with.in 
the context of the policies of Member States ~t their 
national levels, taking fully into account the fact that most 
States were currently exercising financial austerity as a 
national po licy. 

37. His delegation wished to reiterate first of ali its belief 
that problcms of morale within the international civil 
service were more the result of the absence of an effective 
personnel management policy and related machinery than a 
question of remuneration. An improvement in personnel 
management could lcad to grea ter staff productivity with­
out an increase in the number of staff, and also to a more 
stable budget. That objective would be very difficult to 
achieve, but it should be borne in mind. 

38. With reference to th~ recommendations of ICSAB and 
the Advisory Committee, he said that, after careful consid­
eration, his delegation had concluded with rer,ret that it 
could not support the recommended 6 pcr cent increase in 
the ne t'base salary of staff members in the Profcssional and 
highcr categories. Since its inception, the Organization had 
applied the Noblemaire principle whereby, to facilita te 
recruitment and retention of staff members from ali 
Member States , United Nations salaries were based on those 
of the highest paid national civil service, which had always 
been that of the United States. In that connexion, he noted 
from the Advisory Committee's report that no conclusive 
evidence had been produced to corroborate the assertion 
that the United States civil service might no longer be t!1e 
highcst paiù. T:1king into account the expatriate status of 
staff mcmbers, the principle that the basic remuneration of 
United Nations personnel v.ould be reasonable if it did not 
exceed United States salaries by a margin of more than 15 
per cent h:1d becn set forth by the Special Committee for 
tt.e Review of the United Nations Salary System , and 
subsequently concurred in by ICSAB. United Nations n<!t 
remuneration currently exceeded that of United States net 
civil service salaries by sorne 22 to 46 per cent at the grade 
lcvels traditionally used by the United Nations for comparJ­
tive purposes. A 6 percent salary increasc would mean that 
United Nations salaries would excccd United StJtes salaries 
by 29 to 54 percent, taking into ac.:ount the la test United 
States pay increase. lncluding the movement in the post 
adjustment in New York on 1 Deccmber 1974, the total 
increase would average 9.4 pcr cent. \Vhilc the General 
Assembly had not called on JCSAB in 1973 to examine the 
basic principles of the existing salary system, his delegation 
believed, as did the Advisory Committce, that the 3oard's 
rccommendations had been made with too little regard for 
the Noblemaire principle . ICSAB had recommended the 
6 per cent salary incrcase on tl1e bar, is of two factors: the 
combined effect of tosses sin ce 1 J uly 19 71 in the real 
incarne of staff members; and the average improvemcnt in 
the real income of national civil services in the seven 
headquarters co un tries . 

39. His delegation did not consider those arguments valid 
for se veral reasons. First, on 1 July 1971, the date of th~ 
last sal2ry increase, United Nations rates had bccn set 

disproportionately and inequitably hich. Secondly , United 
Nations remuneration hai basic·, Jiy kcp ~ pee with inflation 
and other cost-.:>f.Eving increases uy mc~ns of the post 
adjustment system, whereby the staff was automatically 
compensated for each rise of 5 index points in L' :~ cost of 
living in their cities of residence. As acknowledgcd by the 
Advisory Committee; the United Nations coped with that 
problem better than most national civil services. Thirdly, 
the point made by ICSAB that a rise in real income of 
national civil services in the seven United Nations head­
quarters cilies justified an increase for United Nat ions staff 
was not relevant, since those civil services werc not the base 
used for detennining United Nations salary rates. ln fact, 
the Special Committee for the Review of the United 
Nations Salary System had found in 1972 that salaries 
outside New York were half, or Jess than half, the leve! of 
remtmeration paid by the United Nations. To use those 
salaries as the basis for the salary scale of the United 
Nations would therefore result in an ovcr .all decrease, not 
an increase . Mo~eover, the fact that over-com pcosation had 
taken place in the past was not, in the view of his 
delega.tion, justification for continued and increased over­
compensation; no organization, national Govcrnment or 
private enterprise could operate on that basis, nor could it 
guarantee to maintain fully the purchasing power of 
salaries. 

40 . Rcferring to the comparison between United Nations 
and United States salaries, he pointed out that the 
combination of automatic increases of post adjustment and 
successive base salary increases had substanti:JIIy widened 
the margin of the United Nations salary leve! over that of 
the United States. Margins had ranged from 10 to 29 per 
cent in 1956 and from 19 to 35 percent in J972; currently, 
the figt:res were 22 to 46 per cent. If the recomrnendations 
of the Secrctary-Gcncral werc accepted, the differentiai in 
favour of the UniteJ Nation s would be 29 to 54 per cent, 
or even higher if othcr United Nations allowances, fringe 
benefits and other factors were ta ken into account. His 
delegation therefore felt compelled to urge a hait in that 
ever-widening salary disparity . 

41 . If a proposai was made to use a national civil service 
other than that of the United States as the base for 
computing United Nations salaries, thcn the salaries, bene­
fits, hours of work, vacation pay, and so on , would have to 
be laken into consideration. If, as a result. the entire 
bencfit~ package cxceeded that of the United States civil 
service, thcn the latter should be rerlaced by that othcr 
national civil service for the purpo~e of calcullting United 
Nations remuneration. The United Nations could not, 
however, justify a salary increase based on a selective choice 
of elements from severa! different civil service systems. His 
delegation was convinced that the use of any other system 
would result in a dcfinite decrease in ovcr-all United 
Nations salaries, although it would have no objection in 
future to accepting a different national civil service, or an 
average of civil services in hcadquarters cities, as the basis 
for Unit~d Nations remuneration. 

42 . He drew attention to the information on comparisons 
between United Nations and United States civil service 
salaries contained in the annex to the Advisory Commit­
tec's report and suggcsted that members migh t wish t_o 
compare United Nations remuneration with that of thelr 
own civil services. Ile also noted paragraph 13 of that 



1689th meeting- Il December 1974 359 

report, in which the Advisory Committee accepted the that he had submitted at the previous meeting; the revised 
view, implicit in the ICSAB report, that the proposed draft decision read as follows : 
increases would not, in present circumstances, be justified. 
Y et the Advisory Committee had decided not to oppose the 
6 per cent increase. His delegation sincerely regretted being 
placed in a posture of opposition on that question . There 
was basic agreement on one major point, namely, the 
urgent need for a comprehensive review of the entire 
United Nations salary system. lt was to be hoped that that 
review would alla y the sense of insecurity on the part of the 
staff and the frustration on the part of the administrators 
of the agencies within the United Nations system. Piece· 
meal adjustments such as the one that was proposed were 
causing a serious distortion in the salary scale as well as 
general dissatisfaction. Once made, such distortions were 
virtuaUy impossible to rectify. 

43. Regarding the consolidation of two classes of post 
adjustment into base salaries , his delegation fully shared the 
views expressed by the Advisory Committee in paragraph 
19 of its report. lt also concurred in the opinion in 
paragraph 22 of the same document conceming the 
proposai to reduce the waiting period for the application of 
post adjustment changes from four to three months . With 
reference to the suggested increase in the children 's 
allowance, his delegation considered such a step unjustified 
until the United Nations basic remuneration ratio to United 
States civil service salaries was not more than 115 percent. 
However, it was willing to reconsider its position if other 
delegations appeared to favour the increase. 

44. Fin ally, his delegation agreed with the proposed 
revision of the rate of assignment allowances for duty 
stations outside Europe and North America. 

45. He reminded the Commit tee of the high cost of the 
recommendations currently before it ; approximately 75 per 
cent of the United Nations budget was for personnel costs , 
and for 1975 the Secretary-General's proposed increase 
would cost an additional $32 .4 million net for the entire 
United Nations system. Without the consolidation of two 
classes of post adjustment or a reduction in the waiting 
period for post adjustment changes, the additional cost was 
estimated at $26 million net. The proposai would increase 
the assessments of Member States without increasing 
programme benefits, at a time when most of those States 
were exercising financial austerity at the nationallevel, and 
it would therefore appear to be inconsistent and 
infiationary in nature. 

46. For the reasons he had mentioned , the United States 
would oppose the proposed 6 per cent pay increase, the 
consolidation of two classes of post adjustment into the 
base salary, and the reduction in the waiting period for the 
application of changes in post adjustments. 

AGENDA ITEM 75 

Administrative and budgetary co.()rdination of the United 
Nations with the specialized agencies and the Inter· 
national Atomic Energy Agency: report of the Advisory 
Comrnittee on Administrative and Budgetary Questions 
(concluded) (A/9578, A/9603 (chap. VI, sects. A.3, 5 and 
6), A/9813, A/9852, A/9857, A/C.S/1625) 

47. Mr. RHODIUS (Netherlands) said thal, after consulta· 
tions with certain delegations , he had revised the proposai 

"The Fïfth Committee 

"Recommends to the General Assembly that it should 
take the following decision : 

"The General Assembly, 

"Recalling Article 17, paragraph 3, of the Charter, 

"Decides to give, at its thirtieth session, specifie 
consideration to the item concerning administrative and 
budgetary co-ordination." 

48. The CHAIRMAN said that, if there was no objection, 
he would take it that the Netherlands proposai was adopted 
by consensus. 

lt was so decided. 

·AGENDA ITEM 73 

Programme budget for the biennium 1974-1975 (contin· 
ued)'• (for the previous docwnents, see the 1670th 
meeting; A/98>6, A/9608/Add.l1-15, A/9854, A/C.5/ 
L.1209) 

Question of the separate preparation and submission of 
rhe programme and budget of the United Nations 
Industrial Development Organization and of administra­
tive autonomy for UNIDO (A/9791, A/C.5/1616 and 
Corr.l, A/C.5/1633, A/C.5/L.l109) 

49. The CHAIRMAN drew attention to the note (A/C.S/ 
L.l209) he had prepared in consultation with the Chairman 
of the Advisory Comnùttee on Administrative and Budget­
ary Questions, in paragraph 5 of wlùch it was proposed 
that, in the light of the recommendation of the Second 
Committee (see A/C.5/1633) that the question of the 
preparation of the UNIDO budget and of the administrative 
autonomy of UNIDO should be transmitted to the Second 
General Conference of UNIDO, the Fifth Committee 
should postpone its own consideration of the question un til 
the thirtieth session. 

50. If there was no objection, he would take it thal the 
Committee agreed to lùs proposai. 

ft was so decided. 

AGENDA ITEM 81 

Personnel questions (continued)"" (A/C.5/L.1172): 
(b) Other personnel questions: reports of the Secretary· 

General (continued)"" (A/8454, A/8826, A/98>8/ 
Add.5, A/9841 and Corr.l, A/C.S/1600, A/C.18l1 and 
Add.l, A/C.S/1603, A/C.S/1639, A/C.S/L.I212) 

51. Mr. SAFRONCHUK (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub· 
lies), introducing the draft decision submitted by his 

• ltesumed from the 1687th meeting. 
•• Resumed from the 1687th meeting. 



/ 

360 General Assembly - Twenty·ninth Session - Filth Committee 

delegation (A/C.S/L.1212), said that the documents before 
the Committee covered a very broad range 'of problems, 
with the result that there had not been time for ader1uate 
study and discussion of the proposais contained in the 
report of the Joint Inspection Unit (see A/8454) and the 
views of the Committee had not been made sufficiently 
clear. Divergent opinions on the matter were also given in 
the reports of the Secretary-General (A/C.5/1fiJ1 and 
Add.l ), and of the Advisory Committee on Administrative 
and Budgetary Questions (A/9841 and Corr.l). For in­
stance , the Secretary-General, in paragraph 4 7 of document 
A/C.5/1601, said that at !east two of the recommendations 
of the Joint Inspection Unit- recommendations 16 and 
17- should be considered at an interagency level. The 
Advisory Committee considered, in chapter V of its report, 
that various other recommendations, in addition to recom­
mendations 16 and 17, fell within the a reas of competence 
of the proposed International Civil Service Commission as 
set out in articles 13 and 14 of its draft statute. 

52. ln view of the extensive fmancial implications of the 
proposais, which could not be properly assessed at tite 
current stage, the Jack of time for Govemments to study 
the documents submitted during the session and the variety 
of views cxprcssed in the Committee, his delegation 
considered it desirable that the JIU report, with ali other 
relevant documentation, should be passed for study to the 
Commission which was about to be set up, with a request 
that that Commission should submit its recommendations 
to the General Assembly at its thirtieth session. That was 
particularly desirable in view of the short time at the Fifth 
Committee's disposai and the other matters on its agenda. 

53. Mr. THOMAS (Trinidad and Tobago) said that, at the 
1665th meeting his delegation had pointed out several 
short-comings in the JIU report. At the en(! of the general 
discussion ( 16 71 st meeting) the Under-Secretary-General 
for Administration and Management had outlined a series 
of plans and projects which the delegation of Trinidad and 
Tobago considered very comprehensive. It had therefore 
dccided not to introduce any other proposai at the current 
stage. He wished to ask the Soviet representative whether 
he anticipated an increase in the number of full-time 
members of the International Civil Service Commission to 
enable them to discuss the JIU report, since under their 
terms of reference they were to give priority to a complete 
review of staff salaries and conditions of service. 

54. Mr. SAFRONCHUK (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub­
lics) pointed out that ail the JIU recommendations had an 
impact on the salary system, and both the Secretary­
General and t11e Advisory Committee had said that many of 
them could not be implemented until they had been 
examined by the Commission. The latter could certainly 
deal with both sets of problems, since they were inter­
related, although he was not prepared to say at the current 
stage how that would affect the ratio of full-time to 
part-time mernbers. The Soviet Union had always consid­
ered that the new Commission should work as a whole. 

55. Mr. NAUD Y (France) expresscd surprise at the draft 
decision submitted by the representative of the Soviet 
Union artd said that his delegation had not had time fully to 
appreciate its scope. The discussion on the JIU report had 
already been postponed from year to year; it had been the 

subject of a lengthy debate, and the proposats of JIU and 
the Administrative Management Service and the conclusions 
of the Secretary-General and the Advisory Committee ali 
seemed to converge. There was general agreement on the 
need to modemize the Organization's personnel policies 
and the JlU recommendations had been adopted in 
principle. The Soviet proposai therefore appeared to be a 
retrograde step. His delegation agreed that the new Com­
mission must study the details and the implementation of 
the recommendations, but the general principles of person· 
nel policy should be defined by a legislative organ of the 
whole such as the Fifth Committee. Pending receipt of the 
Advisory Committee's report on the administrative and 
fmancial implications of those proposais, he failed to sec 
the value of the Soviet proposai. 

56. Mr. TALIEH (Iran) exprcssed surprise at the draft 
decision submitted by the Soviet representative, because 
many of the JIU recommendations had been made sorne 
time earlicr and it was urgent thal action should be taken 
on them. His delegation intended to submit a proposai but 
was awaiting the report of the Advisory Committee on the 
administrative and financial implications. 

57. Mr. STOBY (Guyana) endorsed the remarks made by 
the representative of Iran. 

58. Mr. SOKALSKI (Poland) said that many of the 
arguments put forward by the Sovièt' representative when 
introducing the draft decision should allay the doubts 
expressed by the representative of Iran. Since the Bertrand 
report had been submitted in 1971, sorne of the informa­
tion given in the document and many of its recommenda· 
tions were outdated. Additional information was therefore 
necessary before it could be constructively discussed. He 
did not thiQk that the Committee had time to take a 
decision on a report which was not fully up to date and, if 
it did so, the decision would be hasty and would tend to 
perpetuate the current situation. His delegation therefore 
endorsed the Soviet proposai, which it considered deserved 
full consideration. 

59. Mr. MSELLE (United Republic of Tan14nia) pointed 
out that the reports of JIU and the Administrative 
Management Service referred to a wider range of topics 
than the reorgani7..ation of the system of recruitment and 
conditions of service mentioned in the Soviet proposai. 
Many of the subjects discusscd feil within the exclusive 
jurisdiction of the Sccretary-General. For instance, of the 
recommendations of t~e Administrative Management Serv· 
ice, summarized in the Secrctary-General's report (A/C.5/ 
1601/AddJ), was it intended that the Commission should 
be asked to study recommendation 1 on the revision of the 
100 series of the Staff Rules and the completion of the 
Personnel Manual, or recommendation 3 on the establish· 
ment of a personnel advisory committee to advise the 
Assistant Secretary-General for Personnel Services on new 
personnel activities, policies and practices? Those ':"ere 
matters which the Secretary-General must settle immedtate­
ly. He agreed that sorne of the rccommendations such as 
those on job classification and recruitment, might have a 
bearing on the work of the Commission, but many had 
nothing to do with the system-wide application referred to 
in the Commission's terms of reference. 



1690th meeting- 12 De~ember 1974 361 

60. If the Commission was established, it could hardly 
start working be fore July 197 5. 1t would therefore be 
extremely difficult for it to considcr those important 
questions and report to the General Assembly at its 
thirtieth session. The Commission had been asked to look 
into matters which were not even included in its draft 
statute. The Bertrand report had been produced in 1971, 
and a decision on it was urgent. ln view of the fa ct that the 
programme budget for the biennium would have to be 
discussed at the thirtieth session, it was unlikely that there 
would be more time at that session to deal with the JIU 
recommendations than at the current one. 

61. His delegation wished to await the circulation of the 
proposai mentioned by the representative of Iran before 
taking a definite decision on the draft decision proposed by 
the Soviet Union. 

62 . Mr. SETHI (India) said that it was difficult for him to 
comment in detail on the Soviet proposai because he did 
not have all the relevant documents with him. The Fifth 
Committee must come to sorne decision on the matter, and 
his delegation awaited the proposai announced by the 
representative of Iran and the document on the administra­
tive and financial implications with great interest. In its 
statement at the 1666th meeting, his delegation had said 
that the proposais in the Bertrand report were so broad that 
they could not be decided on by the Fifth Committee and 
severa) of them would have to be passed to the Inter­
national Civil Service Commission for further study. 

63. The Secretary-General's report enumerated the recom­
mendations but did not quote the whole text. In view of 
the number and importance of those recommendations, it 
would be impossible to decide upon ali of them immediate­
ly. Sorne of them clearly feil within the competence of the 
International Civil Service Commission in accordance with 
articles 13 and 14 of its draft statute. The Soviet Union's 
proposai was therefore reasonable. He did not consider that 
the postponement of a decision as proposed by the Soviet 
Union would in any way affect the prerogatives of the 
Secretary-General, as the Tanz.anian representative had 
implied. It was difficult to reply to the doubts expressed by 
the representative of Trinidad and Tobago as to whether 
the Commission would have time to complete consideration 
of so vast and complex a set of problems before the 
thirtieth session of the General Assernbly. His delegation's 
first reaction to the Soviet proposai was favourable, and it 
considered that it deserved careful considerat ion by the 
Committee. 

64. The CHAIRMAN suggested that further discussion of 
the matter should be postponed pending circulation of the 
proposai by the representative of Iran and of the Advisory 
Committee's report on the administrative and fmancial 
implications. 

ft was so decided. 

17ze meeting rose at 6.15 p. m. 

1690th meeting 
Thursday, 12 December 1974, at 10.30 a.m. 

Clrainnan: Mr. Costa P. CARANICAS (Greece). 

ADMINISTRATIVE AND FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
OF DRAFT RESOLUTIONS 1 AND 0 SUBMITTED BY 
THE FOURTH COMMmEE IN DOCUMENT A/9892 
CONCERNING AGENDA ITEM 65• (A/9608/ADD.lS, 
A/C.S/1 643/REV .1, A/C.S/1644) 

1. The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee to consider the 
administrative and financial implications of draft resolu· 
tions 1 and Il submitted by the Fourth Committee in Ït$ 
report on the question of Namibia (A/9892, para. 19). The 
Secretary-General stated that adoption by the Assembly of 
the draft resolutions would involve supplcmentary appro­
priations of $331,000 and $55,000 und er sections 23 and 

• Question of Namibia: 
(a} Report of the Special Committce on the Situation with regard 

to the Implementation of the Declaration on the Granting of 
lndcpendence to Colonial Counuies and Pcoples; 

{b} Report of the Unite1 Nations Council for Namibia; 
{c} Report of the Secretary-General; 
(d) United Nations Fund for Namibia: reports of the United 

Nations Council for Namibia and cf the Secrctary-General; 
(fe) Appointmcnt of the United Nations Commissioner for 

Namibia]. 

A/C.S /S R. l690 

27 respectively of the programme budget for the biennium 
1974-1975. 

2. Mr. RHODES (Chairman of the Advisory Committce on 
Administrative and Budgetary Questions) drew attention 
to the Advisory Committee' s report (A/9608/Add.J 5) on 
the statements of administrative and financial implications 
submitted by the Secretary-Gcneral (A/C.S/1643/Rev.l and 
A/C.S/1644 ). His Committee was concemed by the ap· 
parent lack of co-ordination between the activities of the 
United Nations Commissioner for Namibia and his staff and 
those of the secretariat of the United Nations Council for 
Namibia, and felt that the situation should be improved in 
order to ensure the most efficient use of the resources 
approved by the General Assembly. With regard to draft 
resolution 1 of the Fourth Committce, he pointed out that 
the amount of $70,000 for certain legal fees and studies 
included in the Secretary-General's estimate had been 
omitted from the supplemcntary appropriation recom­
mended by the Advisory Committee because the require­
ments for contractual legal fees and studics in connexion 
with the Decrce on the Natural Resources of Namibia could 
not be accurately quantified, and it would thcrefore be 




